Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Ann Sweeney 0208 547 4629
ann.sweeney@kingston.gov.uk
Published on 4 February 2019

Pension Fund Panel
Date:

Tuesday 12 February 2019

Time:

10:00 am

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston upon Thames KT1 1EU
Members of the Committee

Councillor Mark Beynon
Councillor Dennis Goodship

(Chair)
(Vice Chair)

Councillor Roy Arora

Councillor Jaesung Ha
Councillor Alison Holt

Non-Voting Observer Members

Co opted Member

Lesley Diston
Majid Mafi
Chris Coke

Vacant

Kingston University
RBK Staff Side
Retired Members

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR code
with your smartphone.

2

Meeting information
Accessibility


All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are stairs, a
lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (depending
on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).






A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Recording of the meeting
This meeting will be recorded and the recording will be available on the web site
(www.kingston.gov.uk) with the agenda and minutes.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Phrases used at meetings
Like all organisations, the Council has its own ‘jargon’. On the agenda and during debates
you will see/hear the following phrases:


Interests - Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the
agenda. Interests may be personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared,
it might be necessary for the Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in
Part 5A of the Constitution - Members’ Code of Conduct.

Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

3

4

AGENDA
Apologies for absence
Majid Mafi - the substitute member is Marc Cooper.
Declarations of Interest

1.

Minutes

Appendix A

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 13 December 2018.
2.

Pensions Administration Update

Appendix B

3.

Performance for Quarter to 30/12/2018

Appendix C

4.

Investment Strategy Review - Multi Asset Credit

Appendix D

Representatives from the London CIV and CQS will be attending.
5.

ESG - Next Stages
There will be a presentation from Aon Hewitt and discussion covering
Feedback from Member questionnaires
Other LGPS approaches
Values & Beliefs - policy development

6.

Local Authority Pension Fund Forum - Presentation

Keith Bray will be attending.
7.

LGPS Governance Conference January - Update from Chair

Councillor Beynon attended this conference on 17/18 January and will feedback to the
Panel.
8.

Review of Work Programme

9.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

Appendix E

5

To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraphs 1
and 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
Investment Strategy Review Annex 1 and 2

10.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

Appendix D

A1
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

Appendix A

PENSION FUND PANEL
13 DECEMBER 2018
10:00 am – 1:45 pm
Councillor Mark Beynon
Councillor Dennis Goodship
Councillor Roy Arora
Councillor Jaesung Ha
Councillor Alison Holt
Non-Voting Observer Members
L Lesley Diston
* 8 Majid Mafi
*
Chris Coke

Kingston University
RBK Staff Side
Retired Members

(Chair)
(Vice Chair)

Co opted Member
Vacant

* Absent
** Absent due to other Council business

Apologies for absence were received from Chris Coke and majid Mafi o.
Substitute Member – Marc Cooper for Majid Mafi.

Declarations of Interest
Councillor Alison Holt declared a non –pecuniary interest in connection with item 27
in that her husband is a former employee of Hymans Roberts; this dates from more
than 20 years ago and there is no relationship with Hymans Robertson now.
22.

Minutes

Appendix A

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2018 are confirmed
as a correct record.

23.

Pensions Administration Update

Appendix B

An update on the main work streams impacting pension administration for the period
to October 2018 was presented.
Particular points highlighted were
Annual Returns and Annual Benefit Statements 2018 - Updating member records for
those schools which did not meet the Annual Return Submission deadline. Their
Annual Benefit Statements have now been issued.
21

PENSION FUND
13 DECEMBER 2018

A2
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

As provided in the Pensions Administration Strategy a penalty charge has been
issued to the 11 London Borough of Sutton schools and 1 Royal Borough of
Kingston upon Thames school, for the late submission of their annual return. The
charges range from £255 to £487 per school.
At September 2018, the total number of outstanding processes was:
Total number of open processes
Total processes overdue
Processes more than 3 months overdue

2695
2028
947

The total number of processes started for August 2018 was 2,840, an almost 30%
increase on the monthly average for period April 2018 to July 2018. This arose from
work identified via the annual returns.
A restructure of the Pensions Administration Team is currently being considered
deal with the outstanding and ongoing workload. In the very short-term a number of
initiatives are being considered to ensure that the longstanding overdue processes
are dealt with.
Self service registration – the take up of this is currently around 50%.
Performance on service level agreements and various other aspects of the pensions
administration workload was also reported.
Resolved that the Pensions Administration update is noted.

24.

Equity Investment - Training Session

Appendix C

Daniel Carpenter and Mark Searle of Aon Hewitt presented a training session on
equity investment. This covered investment beliefs, style diversification,
performance monitoring and governance, giving the Panel an overview of the key
considerations for the Equity portfolio review.
The aim being to establish the Panel’s views on Equity; passive and active styles of
management; geographical allocation and hedging.
The discussion ranged over
Active and passive styles - returns v liabilities and the risk profiles of each style
UK Global allocations
Manager styles and selection
Fee structures
Equity options available via the CIV
The Panel thanked Daniel and Mark for the presentation.
The February meeting will be discussing bond allocations.
Resolved that the points arising from discussion on the training session are noted
and reflected in future reports on the Investment Strategy review.
22

A3
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

25.

Performance For Quarter To 30/9/2018

PENSION FUND
13 DECEMBER 2018

Appendix D

The value of the Fund's investments at 30 June 2018 was £883.9.m. This is an
increase of £28.2m (3.3%) from the total value at the end of June 2018.
Over the year Sept 17 – Sept 18 the Fund has increased from £814.6m. The
composition of the Fund at 30 September was
Equities
DGF
Bonds
Property

62.5%
21%
11.4%
5.1%

A commentary from each of the fund managers outlining their investment
performance during the quarter to 30 September 2018 was included as Annexes 19. Performance figures are net of fees except in the case of UBS which for the
present is shown gross. This is due to technical issues with the data feed they use
and their internal reporting systems; possible solutions to this are being discussed
with officers for future reporting.
Performance over the year to September 2018 - The Baillie Gifford and Ruffer
portfolios are not included, as these investments began in October 2017.
The highest fund returns for the year were from the equity fund managers, Fidelity
(12.5%), Columbia Threadneedle (16.6%), Schroders (9.7%) and the property fund
manager UBS (8.7% gross).
Columbia Threadneedle were the only fund manager to both exceed their
benchmark return and outperformance target.
The Janus Henderson All Stocks Credit Fund (ASC) was the only other fund to
exceed its benchmark (0.6%).
The Janus Henderson Total Return Bond Fund (TRB) fell short of the 6% pa target
return by -7.5%. This fund is intended to provide some diversification by protecting
against falls in bond asset prices
The Diversified Growth Funds (DGF) - London CIV Pyrford Total Return Diversified
Growth Fund and Standard Life returns for the year were 1.2% and -2.2%
respectively.
Bonds - The Janus Henderson All Stocks Credit Bond Fund (ASC) returned 1.0%
exceeding its benchmark by 0.4%
The Janus Henderson Horizon Total Return Bond Fund (TRB) fell short of the 6%
pa target return by -6.6%. The TRB is intended to provide some diversification by
protecting against falls in bond.
Performance over 3 years to September 18 - The three equity fund managers
provided the highest returns over the rolling three year period. The Standard Life
DGF was the lowest.

23

PENSION FUND
13 DECEMBER 2018

A4
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

The managers exceeding their benchmark return were Columbia Threadneedle,
Janus Henderson ASC and Pyrford. Fidelity, Schroders, UBS and Standard Life all
failed to meet both their benchmark return and outperformance targets.
Developments since the September meeting
In November Aberdeen Standard Investments (ASI) advised that Guy Stern, Head
of the Multi-Asset Investing team and lead for managing the Standard Life Global
Absolute Return Strategies (GARS) fund, is planning to retire in 2019. In February
2019 Aymeric Forest, is expected to join the firm in February 2019 in this role and
begin the transition of responsibilities from Mr Stern of as Head of Multi-Asset
Investing. Mr Forest was previously a senior investment professional in the MultiAsset team at Schroders,
Points from the Panel discussion concerned the performance of equities and the
rewards for this; the changing market conditions and Brexit considerations and the
implications for the investment strategy discussions.
Resolved that the latest performance information is noted.

26.

Presentations from and Discussions with Fund Managers
The Panel met Mark Fulwood, and Matt Argent of Janus Henderson who gave a
commentary on the bonds element of the portfolio, .the fund structure, performance
and outlook; responses to Member questions and a general discussion.
Members thanked them for their presentations and commentary.

7.2% of the Fund is held in the All Stocks Credit Fund (a pooled investment). The
value of the fund at 30 September 2018 was £63.83m (30 September 2017
£63.52m.
4.2% of the Fund - is held in the Return Bond Fund (TRB). The value of the fund at
30 September 2018 was £36.72m (30 September 2017 £37.14m).
A brief update on developments since the completion of the Henderson: Janus
Capital Group merger in May 2017 was given. During the summer of 2018 the Co
CEO arrangements over the integration period ended and Dick Will the former
Janus Chief Executive was appointed as Chief
Market review - 2017 was a year of exceptionally low volatility, 2018 is the opposite
– in the US equities and fixed income have underperformed. There is continuing
domestic growth but Emerging & European markets have struggles. US interest
rates are rising but going down in the rest of the world.
The UK gilts market has performed very well, emerging markets have been the
worst performing.
All Stocks Credit Fund – this is a traditional fixed income fund with two thirds of the
fund invested.
24

A5
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

PENSION FUND
13 DECEMBER 2018

The asset allocations and current positioning were discussed together with the
strategies which had worked and those which hadn’t. Positioning is more neutral
than a year ago.
Questions concerned performance; the asset classes delivering returns and the
outlook for returns; and exposure reflecting Brexit scenarios.
Total Return Bond Fund – this does not have a benchmark but looks at possibilities
everywhere to deliver a total return through income opportunities and capital
appreciation. The effects of the weaker market environment in 2018 on returns
were disappointing and changes to allocations with a view for improved positioning
into 2019 were discussed.
Questions concerned interest rate movements; investor activity, challenges for UK
Corporate Bonds and positioning.

27.

GAD Section 13 Report

Appendix E

The Public Service Pensions Act 2013.intoduced a requirement for the Government
Actuary's Department (GAD) to test to test the actuarial valuations of all LGPS
Funds. GAD is required to report whether LGPS authorities valuation approach
satisfies four key aims: compliance, consistency, solvency and long-term cost
efficiency.
The score on each is ‘flagged’ Red, Amber, and Green, to show the fund’s status for
risks and issues from GAD’s perspective
Red

Amber

Green

Potentially material issue likely to warrant a recommendation for
remedial action from a solvency or long-term cost efficiency
perspective.
Potential issue not serious on its own to merit a recommendation for
remedial action from a solvency or long-term cost efficiency
perspective
No material issues to require a recommendation for remedial

GAD has no statutory power to enforce actions on administering authorities or their
advisers.
The RBK Pension Fund received Green for (compliance, consistency and solvency)
and Amber Flag for (long-term cost efficiency).
GAD’s perspective is that the Fund appears to have extended its deficit recovery
end point by 2 years whilst reducing overall contributions by about 2%.
The modelling for the 2106 valuation validates Kingston’s funding strategy over the
longer term. There have been lengthy discussions between Hymans Robertson and
GAD on its different interpretation of the CIPFA guidance on deficit recovery
periods. The actuary’s interpretation being that recovery periods mean a fixed
number of years – eg 20 – the intention being for funds to have a rolling recovery
period which does not extend the number. Of years. GAD’s interpretation is that the
Fund’s approach could diminish the probability of the Fund being fully funded at the
end of the recovery period.
25

PENSION FUND
13 DECEMBER 2018

A6
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

The GAD view on this will be borne.in mind in the approach to the 2019 actuarial
valuation
Kameel Kapitan from Hymans Robertson gave a presentation to the Panel on
the results from both the actuary’s and GAD’s perspective
a summary of the 2016 valuation approach
Hymans Robertson’s experience on the testing of the 2016 actuarial valuation and
engagement with GAD; and
insights on the 2019 valuation approach, including the thinking on the longer-term
path of contributions for the Fund in light of the GAD results.
Questions from the Panel concerned the view from the 2016 valuation on
contribution rates and the approach to these for stability and funding flows.
The Panel will be kept updated on ongoing discussions with GAD and/or CIPFA on
anomalies in the Regulations,
Resolved that:
1.

the report and the Fund actuary’s presentation on RBK’s Section 13 results

2

RBK Pension Fund’s performance in the GAD’s assessment against four
statutory measures: compliance, consistency, solvency and long-term cost
efficiency

is noted.

28.

Fund Risk Register

Appendix F

The Panel reviews the Fund Risk Register half yearly.
There are 28 open risks categorised as

Liabilities (4 risks)

Funding Strategy (2 risks)

Investments (5 risks)

Governance and Administration (14 risks)

Scheme Employers (3 risks)
They are scored in the same way as the Corporate Risk register - . Likelihood
(scored 1 to 5) and Impact (1 to 5) multiplied to give the risk score and then rated
red/amber/green (RAG) as follows
Red
20 or 25
Amber 12 to 16
Green 0 to 10
There are no red risks. There are 7 amber risks, these and mitigating actions were
detailed in paragraphs 10 - 16 of the report.
26

A7
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

PENSION FUND
13 DECEMBER 2018

The nature of some risks - for example those relating to the global economy - –are
outside the control of the Council and strategies in place to mitigate the impact of
these reflect this.
Currently there are no red risks. There are seven amber risks - these are detailed of
which only 2 can be directly influenced by the Council. These relate to
resourcing of the service and levels of expertise
maintenance of records
The Panel will receive half-yearly updates, if any additional amber or red risks are
identified these will be reported to the earliest available Panel meeting.
Resolved that the current position on the Pension Fund Risk Register is noted and
the actions in place to mitigate the key risks are endorsed.

29.

Update on Brexit

Appendix G

Aon Hewitt, the Fund’s Investment Adviser had been asked to consider and report
on the potential outcomes from the UK Brexit negotiations and the likely impact of
each scenario on the economy, financial markets, asset classes and the likely
impact on the RBK Pension Fund investment portfolio and funding level.
Daniel Carpenter and Mark Searle presented the analysis showing how under the
scenarios of “Deal” (the base case), “Fudged - No Deal”, “Cliff-edge” and “Severe –
No Deal” the Pension Fund funding level may develop over the next 5 years under
different scenarios. A Brexit Risk Matrix and strategy considerations were also
presented.
Under the base case “Deal” scenario, improved growth prospects and better risk
appetite could be conducive to UK equity. However appreciation of Sterling would
cause overseas investments to underperform in Sterling terms. Conversely, a NoDeal or “Cliff-edge” Brexit could precipitate political and economic instability leading
to a recession and protracted low-growth environment.
Modelling suggest that all Brexit scenarios are potentially detrimental for funding
levels but the “Cliff-edge” could exacerbate the funding deficit during 2019. Brexit
decisions will impact on the timing of Portfolio changes which the Panel has been
discussing over recent meetings.
Comments from the Panel concerned the long term nature of investment decisions
and the need to be prepared for any adjustments needed to the timing of these. This
will be discussed further ta the February meeting.
Resolved that the Panel notes :
1.

Aon Hewitt’s report on the likely impacts of the possible Brexit scenarios on
the Pension Fund investments;

2.

how the Pension Fund funding level may develop over the next five years
under various scenarios;.

27

PENSION FUND
13 DECEMBER 2018
3.

30.

A8
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

the Brexit Risk Matrix and the strategy considerations under various Brexit
scenarios.

Updates on the LGPS Environment

Appendix H

The Panel considered an overview of recent important developments in LGPS
pensions including actuarial valuation of the Public Service Pension Scheme
(PSPS), the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) Separation Project and the SAB review
of LGPS third tier employers.
The Public Service Pension Schemes environment is continuing to undergo change
with consequences for the Local Government Pension Scheme.
Some of the most important developments include: actuarial valuations of the PSPS,
the SAB LGPS Separation Project and SAB review of LGPS third tier employers
The Government is considering extending the four-yearly actuarial valuation cycle,
in use in other public sector schemes, to the LGPS. The belief is that this will
minimise complications and aid transparent comparisons with the other public
service pension schemes.
The LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB), which advises the Secretary of State on
the development of the LGPS has commissioned work to develop options for
change on the separation of LGPS pension funds and their hosts (administering
authorities).
The SAB has also initiated a review of the experience of “third tier employers
(admitted and other bodies) in the LGPS.
It will be some time before the outcome of the work is known and the Panel will be
kept updated.
Resolved that the updates on the LGPS Pensions Environment are noted.

31.

ESG Update
Following the training session and discussion on responsible investing at the
November meeting, Lyndsey Gamble gave a verbal update on continuing work on
this in preparation for the February meeting and subsequent meetings on this.
Aon is preparing a questionnaire for circulation to the Panel in January. This is to
capture the values and beliefs of the Panel in preparation for a discussion in
February on development.
It is also planned to invite representatives of the Local Government Pension Service
(LGPS) to a Panel meeting to discuss its approach to ESG engagement.
Information on Local Authority funds which have already adopted a framework on
responsible investment, and their process(es) for this will also be discussed.
28

A9
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

PENSION FUND
13 DECEMBER 2018

Resolved that the update is noted.

32.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME

Appendix I

The proposed Work Programme for February to December 2109 was reviewed, this
is subject to change in the light of any developments in the LGPS world.
It was agreed that the discussion on the 2019 triennial valuation would be moved
from February to the first meeting in the municipal year in May/June.
Resolved that the amended work programme is agreed.

33.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
Resolved that the public are excluded from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of
the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt
information, as defined in paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act,
would be disclosed and the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing the information.
Risk Register
Update on Brexit

Appendix G Annex 1
Appendix H Annex

Signed…………………………………………………….Date…………………
Chair

29

B1

Appendix B

Pension Fund Panel
12 February 2019
Pensions Administration Update
Report by David Kellond, Pensions Administration Manager,
Shared Pensions Administration Service for Sutton and Kingston.
Purpose
To provide an update on the main work streams impacting pensions administration for the
period to January 2019.
Recommendations
To consider and note the report.
Summary
A. This report provides an update on the main work streams impacting pensions
administration for the period of November 2018 to January 2019.
Recommendations
B.

The Panel is recommended to consider and note the report.

Background
1. Sutton and Kingston formed a shared service with effect from 1 April 2016 for the
administration of each respective Council’s Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS). The shared service also administers the LGPS on behalf of in excess of 100
employers, including Sutton Housing Partnership, Kingston University and academy
schools.
2.

The following projects and annual tasks are highlighted to provide an update on the
work the team are completing alongside the day-to-day administration of the schemes.

Issues
Team Restructure
3.

On 21 December 2018, a consultation began on a proposed restructure following the
agreement to increase the salaries budget for the team from 1 April 2019. The key aims
of the proposed restructure were:
● to create a more resilient team structure;
● to ensure that there is sufficient resource to deliver a high-quality service; and
● to encourage and enable members of the team greater access and opportunity
for career development.

B2

4.

Prior to the restructure, the team had 13 posts (11.4 full-time equivalent (FTE)). In
addition, a further two posts (1.8 FTE) were long-standing temporary positions.
Following the restructure, the team would have 16 posts (14.4 FTE) with no ongoing
requirement for temporary positions.

5.

The consultation ended in January 2019 and having considered the feedback provided
a final proposal for restructuring has now been issued with the same number of posts
but an amendment to the type of posts added. The new structure will commence on 1
February 2019, at which time the recruitment process will begin for the vacant positions.
Monitoring of Complaints

6.

All complaints regarding decisions made by the team are referred to the Pensions
Administration Manager for consideration under the Internal Dispute Resolution
Procedure (IDRP).

7.

During this period, no IDRP cases were received. However, further information relating
to a case previously considered at stage two of the IDRP has been requested by The
Pensions Ombudsman.

8.

In addition, one non-IDRP case alleging service delays was received and is being dealt
with in accordance with the Council’s complaints procedure.
Annual Allowance

9.

Pension Savings Statements have been issued to all those members whose growth in
the capital value of their accrued pension rights within the scheme has exceeded £40k
(the standard annual allowance limit) for the year 2017/18.
National Fraud Initiative

10. Both funds participate in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), which is designed to help in
the prevention and detection of fraud. The exercise is performed and coordinated by the
Cabinet Office.
11. In order to do so, information held is shared with other public bodies. This helps to
ensure, for example, that no pensions are being paid to persons who are deceased or
no longer entitled to receive such payments and that occupational income is being
declared when housing benefits are applied for.
12. Where fraud has been committed and pensions have been wrongly paid, the team will
seek recovery of the overpaid sum.
13. Reports have been provided to the NFI and results are expected in February 2019.
Outstanding Processes

B3

14. As of December 2018, the total number of outstanding processes was as follows:
Total number of open processes

2564

Total processes overdue

2020

of which are more than 3 months
overdue

1104

15. Whilst the total number of outstanding tasks has reduced from the previous report. The
number of processes overdue has remained largely constant and those which are more
than three months overdue has increased by 17%. Part of this increase is due to a
pause on a number of cases due to the change in the SCAPE rate and the subsequent
need for factors to be reissued by the Government Actuary’s Department.
16. The restructure referred to above will create a framework in which the team can better
cope with both the outstanding and ongoing workload.
Service Level Agreements
17. The service level agreements as stated in the pension administration strategy were set
up within the pensions administration software at the beginning of January 2018.
18. Annex 1 lists the SLAs with their associated definition and target.
19. The table below shows the percentage of SLAs completed within the agreed timescale
to date (January - December 2018). The total number of general queries that are
reported below only represent a small proportion of general queries that the service deal
with. A larger proportion (on average 40-60 queries per day) are received via the
generic email address and responded to by a pension officer (on rota) by email reply
and do not enter UPM. Consideration is being given to how best monitor timescales of
replying to emails from the generic inbox.

Standard Name

% Hit
% Hit YTD December

APC set up

100

100

AVC Set Up

75

50

Death in Deferment - Calculation of Death Benefits & Est of
Beneficiaries

71

100

Death in Deferment - Payment of Benefits

75

100

Death in Retirement - Calculation of Death Benefits & Est of
Beneficiaries

93

100

Death in Retirement - Payment of Benefits

67

N/A

B4

Death in Service - Payment of Benefits

100

100

Deferment

45

22

General Enquiries

54

80

Interfund In - Establish Benefits & Offer Options

87

100

Interfund In - Obtain Previous Service Details

81

100

Interfund In - Update System

66

42

Leaver

77

85

Refund Actual

86

58

Refund Quote

65

53

Retirement Actual

75

50

Retirement Estimate

40

29

Transfer In - Establish Benefits and Update System

79

50

Transfer In - Request Payment

60

0

Transfer In Quote - Provide Quote to Member

96

100

100

N/A

Transfer Out - Payment of Transfer Value

67

100

Transfer Out Quote

85

N/A

Transfer In Quote - Request Transfer Value

20. As previously reported, the team is still working with its software provider to refine the
processes within the system to ensure that they truly reflect the compliance by the
team. For example, some processes rely on third parties to provide information before
the next step can be taken. In those cases, the process will be shown as overdue if it
goes past the SLA date even though the delay may not be as a result of the team’s
actions. Once all processes have been reviewed and updated, the statistics to date will
be re-run.
21. This activity has been paused, pending an upgrade to the software that is due to be
completed by the end of January 2019.
Bulk Transfers
22. Barnett Waddingham (Sutton’s actuary) and Hymans (Kingston’s actuary) continue to
correspond with the relevant third party actuaries for the appropriate administering
authorities with regard to agreeing to appropriate transfer value. There are currently two
bulk transfers from Kingston to Sutton and a further two from Sutton to Kingston. The
actuaries are liaising in an effort to deal with the four cases using a common
methodology.
GMP Reconciliation Project

B5

23. Prior to April 1997 the minimum level of benefit the pension fund were required to
provide was known as a Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP), which still forms part of
many members’ benefits. When contracting-out ended in April 2016, HM Revenue and
Customs (HMRC) no longer tracked contracted-out rights and issued closure schedules
to schemes so they can compare these against GMP amounts held on scheme records.
This is known as a GMP reconciliation.
24. Intellica, a third party contracted via Civica for the GMP reconciliation project, were
provided with earnings data from UPM to help with their ongoing investigations. Intellica
have now submitted all the queries they deemed necessary to HMRC and expect
responses to be received by the end of January 2019. At that point, they will issue a
closure report.
25. The closure report, will detail all those members for whom the GMP data held requires
amendment. This will have little impact on active and deferred members. However,
where pensioner members are over state pension age and in receipt of a GMP amount
that requires adjustment, their pensions may have been under or overpaid. Analysis of
the closure report will allow for an assessment of the further work required to complete
this project.
Impacts and Implications
Financial
26. There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report.
Legal
27. There are no legal implications arising from the recommendations in this report.
Background papers – None other than those referred to in this report.

Extract from Pension Administration Strategy

B6

Annex 1

Standard of expected service between the Administering Authority and the
Employers
Who1

Administration Description

Performance standard2

New Starters, Transfers In & Leavers

1

E

New starter: To supply information on the LGPS in the
starter communication to the new employee.

Within 20 working days of the
new employee’s first day of
employment.

E

New scheme member: Employer3 to send to S&K PAT
the details of the new member in the required format as
agreed with S&K PAT.

Within 30 working days after
the scheme membership start
date.

S&K

New scheme member: Create a new pensions record
using the completed notification from the Employer
(above).

Within 20 working days from
the date of notification.

S&K

Transfer in quote: S&K PAT to request a transfer
details from the new member’s previous scheme4.

Within 15 working days from
receipt of request for quote.

S&K

Transfer in quote: Calculate and provide quotation to
member5.

Within 15 working days from
receipt of all information.

S&K

Transfer in: Request payment of transfer value.

Within 10 working days of
receipt of all information.

S&K

Transfer In: Credit member record (having been
informed that payment has been made) with
membership due from transfer of previous pension
benefits.

Within 15 working days of
receipt of payment from
previous pension scheme.

S&K

Transfer In: Notification of service purchased by an
incoming transfer to be provided to the scheme new
member.

Within 30 working days of
receipt of the all the required
information.

S&K

Leaver: Provision of options for leaver.

Within 3 months of receiving
correct leaver notification
from scheme employer.

E represents Employer
S&K represents pensions administration team
2 All performance standards represent timescales once all required information is received from the relevant party.
3 If a third party payroll provider is supplying starter information, the employer is responsible for satisfying themselves
that the information is being supplied in the correct format agreed with the pension team.
4 Requests to transfer in previous service must be made by the member within 12 months of joining the current
scheme.
5 A transfer value is guaranteed for 3 months (GAD Transfer Value Guidance, 8 April 2016)

Extract from Pension Administration Strategy

B7

Annex 1

Existing Members & Schemes (Transfer & IFA in, refunds)
S&K

Member record changes: Changes to data which
materially affect actual or potential benefit calculations to
be processed.

Within 10 working days of of
receipt of all necessary
information, whichever is
later.

S&K

Transfers in: Member to be notified.

Within 30 working days of
receipt of all necessary
information.

S&K

Transfers out: Provision of details of transfer value
available to member. Includes Cash Equivalent Transfer
Value (CETV) for divorce quotes.

Within 15 working days from
receipt of request for quote.

S&K

Transfers out: Payment of transfer value to nominated
recipient.

Within 10 working days of
receipt of information.

S&K

Divorce Proceedings6 Earmarking or divorce sharing
order received.

Within 20 working days from
receipt of all required
information.

S&K

Interfund Adjustments (IFA) in: Obtain previous
service details.

Within 15 working days from
receipt of all required
information.

S&K

Interfund Adjustments (IFA) in7: If combining service,
request payment of interfund value.

Within 10 working days from
receipt of information.

S&K

Interfund Adjustments (IFA) in: Establish benefits and
update system.

Final interfund calc - 15
working days (& have been
informed that the payment
has been made).

S&K

Refund quote & refunds of contributions: to be
calculated and paid where due under the Regulations.

Within 20 working days of
receipt of all necessary
information following the
elapse of any period before
which the contributions can
be refunded.

6

LGPS regulations 2013 state that the statutory timescale to 4 months to implement a Pension Sharing Order
(and actually discharge the scheme’s liability) is 4 months following receipt of all relevant
information/documents e.g. Decree Absolute.
7

payment needs to be made within 3 months of the election date.

Extract from Pension Administration Strategy

B8

Annex 1

S&K

Additional Voluntary Contributions: Establishment of
AVC record on database and notification sent to payroll
provider.

Within 10 working days of
receipt of all information.

S&K

Deferment: Provide a statement of deferred benefits

20 working days from receipt
of all information.

S&K

Upon receipt of a death notification: from an
Employer of a pensioner; arrangements put in place for
pension payments to cease.

Within 5 working days of
receipt of all information.

S&K

Upon receipt of a death notification: from an
Employer of a pensioner, calculations of benefits sent to
next of kin or other relevant party.

Within 10 working days of
receipt of notification of a
death.

Setting up of any dependents pension.

Within 10 working days of
receipt of all necessary
information.

Payment of death benefits8: including setting up of any
dependents pension.

Within 10 working days of
receipt of all necessary
information.

Death

S&K

Retirements

8

E

Employer to send S&K PAT retirement notification.

At least 30 days before their
final day of employment.

S&K

S&K PAT to produce retirement estimate (where
possible employers are expected to produce retirement
quotes themselves via Employer Self Serve).

Within 10 working days.

S&K

Finalisation of retirement, issue of lump sum &
notification of benefits.

Within 10 working days.

S&K

Send benefit options to member together with relevant
forms required for payment of retirement benefits.

Within 20 working days of
receiving notification from the
Employer.

S&K

Arrangement of payment of pension.

To join the next available pay
run (subject to cut off dates).

Same timescales apply for death of dependant pensioner/spouse

Extract from Pension Administration Strategy

Annex 1

B9

Monthly Contributions
E

Employer to send funds and schedule of deductions from By the 19th day of the month
salary to either LBS or RBK pension fund.
following the month in which
contributions were deducted,
or the working day
immediately prior to this if
19th falls on a weekend or
bank holiday.

Annual Returns
E

To provide the S&K PAT with year-end information to 31
March each year in the required format.

By the 7th of May or the
working day immediately
prior to this if 7th May falls on
a weekend of bank holiday.

Pensioners
S&K

Every pensioner to receive a monthly pension advice
payslip in the months of March and April from Councils’
Payroll Services. A hard copy payslip will be generated
only where the net pension alters by £5 or more from the
previous month.

March & April.

S&K

Returned pension payment: Undertake relevant
investigation for returned payments and update iTrent
(payroll) & UPM.

Complete suspension & write
to pensioner within 10
working days.

Contact with S&K PAT
S&K

Answer all phone calls from members and Employers.

9am to 5pm.

S&K

Respond to all email communications from members and Within 10 working days.
Employers.

S&K

All complaints to be dealt with within LBS corporate
complaint procedure and Internal Dispute Management
Procedure.

Stage 1 complaint
acknowledged and
responded to within 20
working days.

Appendix C

C1

Pension Fund Panel
12 February 2019
Pension Fund Valuation and Performance at 31 December 2018
Report by Head of Investments, Risk & Commercial Finance - Resources
Purpose
To review the performance of the Pension Fund investments.
This report considers the investment performance of the Fund and each manager for the quarter to
the end of December 2018, performance in the last twelve months and annualised rolling three
year performance against the benchmark.
Recommendations
To Resolve that the Panel notes the performance of the total Fund investments and individual
fund managers.

Key Points
A.

The value of the Fund's investments at 31 December 2018 was £817.6 million. This is a
decrease of £66.3 million (7.5%) from the total value at the end of September 2018.

B.

Supplementary reports from each of the fund managers, outlining their investment
performance during the quarter to 31 December 2018 are appended to this report.

Context
1.

The manager structure at 31 December 2018 with benchmarks and performance targets is
detailed below.

Manager

% share of
Total Fund

Benchmark index

Annual Performance target
above benchmark

Fidelity

24.5%

MSCI All Countries World Index

+ 1.5 – 2.0% p.a.

Columbia
Threadneedle

20.7%

MSCI All Countries World Index

+ 2.5 - 3.0% p.a.

Schroders

14.1%

MSCI All Countries World Index

+ 3.0% p.a.

Janus Henderson All Stocks Credit

7.8%

iBoxx All Stocks Non-Gilts index

+ 0.5% p.a.

Janus Henderson Total Returns Bond

4.5%

No benchmark

+ 6.0% p.a.

UBS

5.6%

IPD UK All Balanced Funds

Outperform index

Median index

C2
London CIV - Pyrford
(*DGF)

9.6%

RPI

+ 5.0% p.a.

Aberdeen Standard

4.2%

6 month LIBOR

+ 5.0 % p.a.

London CIV - Baillie
Gifford (DGF)

4.1%

UK Base Rate + 3.5% p.a.

Outperform index

London CIV - Ruffer
(DGF)

4.1%

No benchmark

N/A

NB: 0.8% was held as cash internally.

*DGF - DIVERSIFIED GROWTH FUND

Current Composition of the Fund
2.

The strategic asset allocation benchmark for the Fund (as outlined in the current Investment
Strategy Statement) and the actual split as at 31 December is given below:

3.

The composition of the Fund, by manager as at 31 December 2018 and a comparison with
December 2017 is shown below.

C3

Valuations and Performance to 31 December 2018
4.
The managers’ investment reports for the quarter ending 31 December 2018 are
appended to this report.
5.
The market value of the Fund investments at 31 December 2018 was £817.6
million. This is a decrease of £66.3 million (7.5%) from the total value at the end of
September 2018.
6.

Overview of Markets in Q4 2018
● Global equities posted sharp declines in Q4 on persistent concerns over global trade and
slowing economic growth. Government bond yields generally fell (i.e. prices rose),
reflecting the broad uncertainty.
● US equities declined, with especially steep falls in December. The Federal Reserve raised
rates, as expected. Warnings from several high profile IT firms fanned fears that
earnings growth may slow.
● European equities also declined, with trade tariffs, slower Chinese growth and Brexit
combining to form a difficult environment. Data continued to point to slowing momentum
in the eurozone economy.
● The FTSE All-Share fell over the period, with global developments setting the tone for the
market. Sterling fell in response to political noise around Brexit, with worries of a ‘no
deal’ departure from the EU coming to the fore again.
● Japanese equities lost value, with weakness coinciding with periods of yen strength as the
currency continued to be viewed as a "safe-haven" at times of increased uncertainty.
● Emerging markets equities lost value with the familiar array of global trade and growth
concerns weighing on returns. Brazilian equities and the real rallied ahead of the
market-friendly election outcome; confirmed in late October.

C4
● Bond yields were lower (i.e. prices rose) over the quarter, broadly reflecting increased risk
aversion and volatility amid continued macro uncertainty relating to trade tensions,
Brexit and politics in Italy.
7.

The table below highlights the movement in the equity benchmark index (MSCI All Countries
World Index) on a quarterly basis.
Quarter

Equity Benchmark
Index
%

2018 Q1

- 4.5

2018 Q2

+ 6.8

2018 Q3

+ 5.6

2018 Q4

-10.7

Annual Performance for year to 31 December 2018
8.

The quarterly valuations of the total Pension Fund over the last year are shown in the
following chart:

9.

For consistency, each manager has been asked to provide performance figures on a net of
fees basis.

10.

As previously reported to the Panel, UBS who manage the property portfolio, are unable to
produce net of fee returns at the total portfolio level due to a number of issues relating to a
decision by the Panel in 2009 to retain holdings in other property portfolios, when the Fund’s
former “balanced mandate” with UBS was replaced by specialist Equity and Bond mandates.

C5
11.

However, officers will shortly liaise with UBS on a solution to deliver going forward, net of
fees performance calculations, using quarterly data sourced from UBS and the other external
managers.

12.

Apart from UBS (gross), the net performance of each of the managers in the year to 31
December 2018 compared with their respective benchmark index and their outperformance
target is shown in the table below:

Manager

NET
Fund
Value
Value
return for
31 Dec 17 31 Dec 18 year to
(£m)
(£m)
Dec 18

Benchmark
Outreturn for
performanc
year to
e Target
Perf.
Perf.
return to relative to relative to
Dec-18
Dec 18
Benchmark target

FIDELITY

212.39

200.02

-5.9%

-3.8%

-2.3%

-2.1%

-3.6%

COL.
THREADNEEDLE

178.82

169.57

-5.2%

-3.8%

-1.3%

-1.4%

-3.9%

SCHRODERS

123.57

115.43

-6.6%

-3.8%

-0.8%

-2.8%

-5.8%

HENDERSON ASC

64.91

63.91

-1.8%

-1.6%

-1.1%

-0.2%

-0.7%

HENDERSON TRB

37.45

36.45

-2.7%

n/a

6.0%

n/a

-8.7%

UBS

43.18

45.88

*6.3%

7.5%

7.5%

-1.2%

-1.2%

CIV - PYRFORD

79.40

78.24

-1.5%

2.7%

7.7%

-4.2%

-9.2%

Aberdeen Standard

36.31

34.23

-5.8%

0.8%

5.8%

-6.6%

-11.6%

CIV - BAILLIE
GIFFORD

35.45

33.67

-5.0%

4.1%

4.1%

-9.1%

-9.1%

CIV - RUFFER

35.70

33.54

-6.0%

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

0.00

6.63

847.19

817.57

Internal Cash

Total

-

-

-

*gross
13. In what was a disappointing year, only the UBS property portfolio managed to record a positive
return.
14. All of the fund managers failed to meet both their benchmark returns and outperformance
targets.
15. The Janus Henderson All Stocks Credit Fund (ASC) was only 0.2% below its benchmark
return, and 0.7% below it’s target return.
16. The Janus Henderson Total Return Bond Fund (TRB) fell short of the 6% pa target return by 8.7%. The TRB is intended to provide some diversification by protecting against falls in bond
asset prices.
17. The performance of all the managers for the year to 31 December 2018 is shown graphically
below.

C6

Managers’ Performance on a rolling 3 year period to 31 December 2018

18. The targets for each of the fund managers are based upon outperforming the benchmark
index over a rolling three year period. Apart from UBS (see paragraph 10), the following table
shows the net three year annualised performance of the fund managers (whose mandates
commenced before January 2016).

Manager

Inception
Date

NET
3 year Fund
Return to
Dec 18

3 year Out3 year
performance
3 year
3 year
Benchmark
Target
Performance Performance
Return to
Return to
relative to
relative to
Dec 18
Dec 18
Benchmark
target

FIDELITY

Sep-09

10.3%

11.9%

13.4%

-1.6%

-3.1%

COL.
THREADNEEDLE

Sep-09

12.6%

11.9%

14.4%

0.7%

-1.8%

SCHRODERS

Sep-09

11.2%

11.9%

14.9%

-0.8%

-3.8%

JANUS
HENDERSON ASC

Sep-09

4.4%

4.1%

4.6%

0.4%

-0.1%

JANUS
HENDERSON TRB

Jun-13

1.6%

0.1%

6.0%

n/a

-4.4%

UBS

Aug-07

*5.8%

7.1%

7.1%

-1.3%

-1.3%

LONDON CIV PYRFORD DGF

Jan-14

3.1%

3.1%

8.1%

0.0%

-5.0%

ABER. STANDARD

Jan-14

-2.0%

0.7%

5.7%

-2.6%

-7.6%

*gross

C7
19.

The three equity fund managers provided the highest returns over the rolling three year
period. The Aberdeen Standard Diversified Growth Fund was the only fund to record a
negative return.

20.

Columbia Threadneedle and Janus Henderson ASC were the only fund managers to exceed
their benchmark return.

21.

Fidelity, Schroders, UBS and Aberdeen Standard all failed to meet both their benchmark
return and outperformance targets.

22.

The performance of the managers for the three year period to the end of December 2018 is
shown graphically below. The Baillie Gifford and Ruffer funds have not been included, as
these investments commenced October 2017.

Residential Property Investment
23.

At the meeting held on 22 February 2018, the Panel resolved that an investment of £25m be
made into the M&G UK Residential Property Fund, to be funded from the Global Equities
mandates. The Panel was made aware that it is likely to take 2 years for an agreed
investment to be fully called by the Fund.

24.

In July 2018, M&G confirmed acceptance of the Fund’s Capital Commitment to subscribe for
Units of the UK Residential Property Fund. However, no notice has yet been issued for a
subscription.

C8
Recent developments
25.

In January, Janus Henderson advised that Ryan Myerberg, portfolio manager in the Global
Bonds team and co-Portfolio Manager on the Janus Henderson Total Return Bond Fund,
was leaving the firm to pursue other opportunities.

26.

As a result, Chris Diaz, Co-Head of Global Bonds, has joined Andy Mulliner as co-Portfolio
Manager on the Janus Henderson Total Return Bond Fund.

27.

Janus Henderson confirm that there will be no changes to the investment process or
philosophy of the Total Return Bond Fund due to these changes. Chris Diaz and Nick
Maroutsos continue as co-Heads of Global Bonds.

Background papers – None other than those referred to in this report
Author of report - Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Investments, Risk & Commercial Finance -

Resources
Email: lyndsey.gamble@sutton.gov.uk

ANNEX

Tel: 020 8770 5358

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORTS from

1

Fidelity

2

Schroders

3

Columbia Threadneedle

4

Janus Henderson ASC

5

Janus Henderson TRB

6

UBS Investment report

7

Aberdeen Standard DGF

8

LONDON CIV - for funds invested in Pyrford DGF, Ruffer DGF
and Baillie Gifford DGF

D1

Appendix D

Pension Fund Panel
12 February 2019
INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW - BOND PORTFOLIO
Report by Head of Investment, Risk and Commercial Finance - Resources
Purpose
To review the Fund’s investment strategy with regards to the bond portfolio.
Recommendations
To RESOLVE that the Panel notes the report and approves the proposal contained in Aon
Hewitt’s review of the bond portfolio (exempt Annex 1) to re-allocate a proportion of the
funds currently invested in Janus Henderson’s All Stocks Credit fund to the London CIV
Multi-Asset Credit fund.

Key Points
A.

The Panel received a presentation from Aon Hewitt, the fund’s investment adviser,
in September 2018 on the fund’s investment strategy. This highlighted opportunities
to enhance the fund’s risk/return profile by re-allocating a proportion of the
investment grade bond holding to a multi-asset credit fund.

B.

The Panel received training on fixed income as an asset class (including multi-asset
credit) in June 2018.

C.

Over the past year the London CIV has been preparing and launching its fixed
income range of funds which include a multi-asset credit fund in May 2018.

Background
1.

Following the 2016 triennial valuation, the Panel commissioned an asset/liability
study to inform the update to the investment strategy. A report on the outcome of
the study was presented to the Panel on 28 June 2017. This highlighted 3 main
themes:
● reduce growth asset risk
● additional diversification
● Increase liability matching

2.

The Investment Strategy review in September 2018 highlighted the opportunity to
use a multi-asset credit strategy to add diversification to the bond portfolio to
generate higher returns than the liability matching assets. Further, the Investment
Strategy Statement states that the Fund would transition its liquid assets to the
London CIV as opportunities arise.

3.

The current asset allocation of the fund is summarised in the table below. Further
work is required on re-balancing the portfolio to its Strategic Benchmark Allocations
and this will be presented to the Panel at subsequent meetings. The bond portfolio
itself remains underweight at 12% and comprises 2 funds managed by Janus
Henderson - All Stocks Credit fund (£64m) and Total Returns Bond fund (£36m).

D2
Table 1. Asset Allocation at 31 December 2018
Asset class

Strategic
Benchmark
allocation

Rebalancing
range
(lower)

Rebalancing
range
(higher)

Current
asset
weighting
(31/12/2018)

Equities

60%

55%

65%

60%

Bonds

15%

10%

20%

12%

DGF

20%

15%

25%

22%

Property

5%

n/a

n/a

6%

100%

-

-

100%

Total

.
Bond Portfolio Review
4.

Aon Hewitt’s bond portfolio review is attached at exempt Annex 1. This shows that
by reducing the Janus Henderson All Stocks Credit fund by c.£32m and investing in
the London CIV multi-asset strategy fund will lead to a greater return and less
volatility than the present bond portfolio.

5.

The London CIV launched their Multi Asset Credit strategy fund on 31 May 2018.
The appointed manager is CQS, a global manager with over $14 billion assets
under management, of which $5 billion is in MAC funds. At present, the Kingston
fund has 18% of its assets on the London CIV platform and this would increase to
22% if the Panel agree the proposal to re-allocate the bond portfolio to the London
CIV.

6.

Representatives from the London CIV and CQS will be in attendance to provide
further details of their offering. Panel members will have an opportunity to question
them and Aon Hewitt have provided some sample questions in exempt Annex 2.

Background papers
Author of report – Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Investment, Risk and Commercial
Finance – Resources
email: lyndsey.gamble@sutton.gov.uk phone: 020 8770 5358
None other than those referred to in this report

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

D3

Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

D11

Document is Restricted

E1

Appendix E

Pension Fund Panel
12 February 2019
Work Programme
Report by Head of Investment, Risk and Commercial Finance - Resources
Purpose
To update the Panel on the proposed work programme for the June 2019-February 2020
meetings.
Recommendation
The Panel is recommended to note the programme.

Key Points
A.

i.

This report sets out the programme of work which the Panel will need to carry out in
the 2019-20 municipal year. The list of dates and the key items scheduled are as
follows:
13 June 2019
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

ii.

12 September 2019
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

iii.

Training Session - topic to be advised
Pensions Administration update
Performance for Quarter to 31 March 2019
Presentation by Fund Manager(s) (TBC)
Equity Portfolio Review
Triennial Review 2019 Preparations -Presentation by Actuary
Fund Risk Register
Business Plan
Review of Work Programme

Training Session - topic to be advised
Pensions Administration update
Performance for Quarter to 30 June 2019
Presentation by Fund Manager(s) (TBC)
Investment Benchmarking 2018/19
Pension Fund Annual Report and Financial Statements
Update on the London CIV
Review of Work Programme

19 December 2019
●
●
●
●

Training Session - topic to be advised
Pensions Administration update
Performance for Quarter to 30 September 2019
Presentation by Fund Manager(s) (TBC)

E2

● Triennial Actuarial Valuation of the Pension Fund as at 31 March 2019
● Review of Work Programme
iv.

11 February 2020
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Training Session - topic to be advised
Pensions Administration update
Performance for Quarter to 30 December 2019
Presentation by Fund Manager(s) (TBC)
Business Plan
Update on London CIV
Review of Work Programme

Other items may be added during the year in consultation with the Chair. In addition, at
each meeting there will be regular updates as appropriate in respect of the following:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Finance Shared Service implementation
Regulatory changes
London CIV
Governance arrangements
Reviews of Policies (as required)
Any matters referred by the Pension Board

Background papers - none
Author of report
Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Investment , Risk and Commercial Finance - Resources
Email: lyndsey.gamble@sutton.gov.uk Phone: 020 8770 5358

